
Workforce Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 24 September 2019

TIME: 11.45 am

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting Held on 27 August 2019 (Pages 1 - 2)

4  Whistleblowing Policy Update (Pages 3 - 10)

5  My Work - Enabling our People to be Smarter in How They Work (Pages 11 - 26)

6  Any Other Business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 793 3316
Carol.eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



WORKFORCE PANEL

Held on Tuesday 27 August 2019

Meeting started at 10:00am
Meeting ended at 10:05am

PRESENT: Councillor John Ferguson – Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial 
Relations – in the chair

Councillors Paula Boshell, Bill Hinds, David Lancaster, Tracy Kelly and Gina 
Reynolds.

OFFICERS: Sam Betts Assistant Director HR & OD
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services
Liz Wright Democratic Services

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor and Councillors 
Antrobus and Merry, and Charlotte Ramsden and Jim Taylor.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2019 were approved as a correct record.

4. LEADERSHIP APPOINTMENT – PEOPLE DIRECTORATE

The Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations invited the Assistant 
Director HR & OD to present the proposed approach and process for the recruitment, 
selection and appointment to the part time post of Assistant Director, Integrated 
Commission, following a request for flexible working, to maintain the leadership 
capacity to continue to deliver on commissioning programmes relating to adult social 
care and mental health for the City Council and Salford Clinical Commissioning 
Group (SCCG).

Councillor Reynolds pointed out that the proposals had not been discussed with her, 
as Lead Member, in advance of this meeting and the Assistant Director agreed to 
remind officers of the need to brief relevant Lead Members in advance of anything 
being proposed for approval at Workforce Panel.

The Assistant Director explained that specific working patterns had not yet been 
agreed so that full consideration could be given to how the role could be delivered to 
best suit the needs of the Council and the SCCG. 

RESOLVED, THAT:
1) Workforce Panel agree the membership of the Appointment Panel for the part-time 
post of Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning, and
2) the Appointment Panel be delegated to agree the final details of the recruitment 
and selection arrangements as follows:
(a) agree the role profile;
(b) agree the recruitment advertising approach;
(c) agree the detail of the selection process, including partner involvement, and
(d) appoint a suitable candidate and notify Cabinet Members allowing any objections 
to the offer to the City Mayor. Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

TO 

WORKFORCE PANEL

ON 

24th SEPTEMBER 2019

TITLE: Whistleblowing Policy (2019 update)

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Workforce Panel are asked to consider and approve the 
revised Whistleblowing Policy.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The council’s Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed regularly 
to ensure it remains consistent with good practice, emergent legal requirements, and 
supports the council’s counter fraud strategy effectively.

The Policy has been revised to make it more user friendly and ensure consistency 
with the good practice model promoted nationally by Protect, (formerly known as 
Public Concern at Work) the whistleblowing charity. The principles, meaning and 
associated processes are unchanged and the policy is consistent with the latest 
legal/regulatory requirements.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: See attached policy (Appendix A)

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS: See attached policy (Appendix A)

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Anti-Fraud & Anti-Corruption Policy Statement

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Adherence to legislative 
requirements should ensure whistleblowers rights are protected and referrals are 
dealt with in a fair, equitable and proportionate way.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: The council must ensure that it complies with the 
requirements of The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1988, known as the 
“Whistleblowing Act”

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Miranda Carruthers Watt, Monitoring Officer

The council has a legal obligation to ensure that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards.  There is also a duty on the council to 
ensure that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. The City 
Council’s counter fraud policies, which include the Whistleblowing Policy are adopted 
and implemented to ensure it meets its statutory duties and does not exceed the 
powers available. 

The Whistleblowing Policy complies with the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 
which is contained within the Employment Rights Act 1996. The Council’s policy 
affords protection to individuals who make certain disclosures of information in the 
public interest. 

Final approval of the policy will be by Workforce Panel.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Steve Hulme, Strategic HR Manager

The HR Team support managers and the Internal Audit Team to discharge the 
council’s responsibilities under this policy, including supporting and protecting 
whistleblowers and facilitating disciplinary processes.

Consultation on the attached policy has been undertaken with Trade Unions (joint 
secretaries).  

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith, Internal Audit Manager TEL NO: Ext 6969

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A

Page 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-public-interest-disclosure-act


 Page 1

Whistleblowing Policy - DRAFT

INTRODUCTION

All of us at one time or another experience concerns about what is happening at work. 

Usually these are easily resolved. However, when the concern feels serious because it is 
about a possible fraud, danger or malpractice that might affect others or the organisation itself, 
it can be difficult to know what to do.

You may be worried about raising such a concern and may think it best to keep it to yourself, 
perhaps feeling it’s none of your business, that it’s just a suspicion, or is only something that 
might happen. You may feel that raising the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, managers 
or to the organisation. You may decide to say something but find that you have spoken to the 
wrong person or raised the issue in the wrong way and are not sure what to do next.

The Mayor and Chief Executive of Salford City Council are committed to running the 
organisation in the best way possible and to do so need your help. This policy has been 
introduced to reassure you that it is safe and acceptable to speak up and to enable you to 
raise any concern you may have about malpractice at an early stage and in the right way.   

This policy applies to all those who work for us; whether full-time or part-time, employed 
through an agency or as a volunteer. If you have a whistleblowing concern, please let us know. 

This Whistleblowing Policy is primarily for concerns where the public interest is at risk, which 
includes a risk to the wider public, customers, workforce or the council itself. If something is 
troubling you that you think we should know about or look into, please use this policy. 
However:

 if you are a member of the workforce and you wish to make a complaint about your 
employment or how you have been treated, please use the grievance procedure

 if you are a member of the public and are dissatisfied with a service received or would like 
to complain a matter relating to the council, please use our complaints procedure

 if you have a safeguarding concern regarding a child or vulnerable adult, please use the 
council’s referral process

If in doubt - raise it!

Page 5

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/people-zone/employee-zone/manage-my-performance-sickness-and-conduct/raise-a-grievance/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/have-your-say/complaints-comments-or-compliments/complaints-procedure/
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/knowledge-zone/how-we-do-things/safeguarding-children-and-vulnerable-adults/


Whistleblowing Policy
September 2019 

 Page 2

OUR ASSURANCES TO YOU

Your safety

The Mayor and Chief Executive are committed to this policy. Provided you are raising a 
genuine concern, it does not matter if you are mistaken. 

Of course we do not extend this assurance to someone who maliciously raises a matter they 
know is untrue. If individuals are found to have made malicious or vexatious allegations, 
disciplinary action may be taken.

If you raise a genuine concern under this policy, you will not be at risk of losing your job or 
suffering any form of reprisal as a result. The harassment or victimisation of anyone raising a 
genuine concern will be viewed as a disciplinary matter.

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1988, known as the “Whistleblowing Act” provides 
protection for workers against detrimental treatment or dismissal for disclosing information 
because they reasonably believe it is in the public interest to do so, specifically in relation to:

 a criminal offence that has, is being, or is likely to be committed
 miscarriages of justice
 danger to health and safety
 damage to the environment
 failure to comply with any legal obligation or regulatory requirements
 the deliberate concealment of any of the above matters

Whilst not within the scope of the Act, individuals not employed by the council, for example 
those providing contracted services or volunteering, may also raise concerns under this policy.

Your confidence

With these assurances, we hope you will raise your concern openly. However, we recognise 
that there may be circumstances when you would prefer to speak to someone confidentially 
first. If this is the case, please say so at the outset. 

If you ask us not to disclose your identity, we will not do so without your consent unless 
required by law. You should understand that there may be times when we are unable to 
resolve a concern without revealing your identity, for example where your personal evidence is 
essential. In such instances, we will discuss with you whether and how the matter can best 
proceed.

Please remember that if you do not tell us who you are (and therefore you are raising a 
concern anonymously) it will be much more difficult for us to look into the matter. We will not 
be able to protect your position or to give you feedback. Accordingly you should not assume 
we can provide the assurances we offer in the same way if you report a concern anonymously.

Page 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-public-interest-disclosure-act


Whistleblowing Policy
September 2019

 Page 3

HOW TO RAISE A CONCERN INTERNALLY

Please remember that you do not need to have firm evidence of malpractice before raising a 
concern. However we do ask that you explain as fully as you can the information or 
circumstances that gave rise to your concern.

Step one – Your line manager

If you have a concern about malpractice, we hope you will feel able to raise it first with your 
manager or team leader. This may be done verbally or in writing. 

Step two – Internal Audit

If you feel unable to raise the matter with your manager, for whatever reason, please raise the 
matter with the internal audit team:

 telephoning the confidential hotline (answerphone) on 0808 100 1235 or Internal Audit on 
0161 607 6969

 completing the online form or email audit@salford.gov.uk

 writing to the Internal Audit Manager, Internal Audit Services, 3rd floor, Salford Civic 
Centre, Swinton, M27 5AW

Internal Audit have been given special responsibility in dealing with whistleblowing concerns.

If you want to raise the matter confidentially, please say so at the outset so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made.

Step three – Senior Management

If these channels have been followed and you still have concerns, or if you feel that the matter 
is so serious that you cannot discuss it with any of the above, please contact the council’s: 

 Chief Executive

 Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director Legal & Governance)

 Chief Finance Officer (Assistant Director Finance)

MONEY LAUNDERING

If you think your concern may relate to money laundering, please read the council’s anti-money 
laundering procedures as there are specific legal responsibilities and requirements.  

Money Laundering is a criminal offence that involves turning the proceeds of criminal activity 
into apparently ‘innocent’ funds with no obvious link to its criminal origins.  

Where you know or suspect that money laundering activity is taking or has taken place, you 
must disclose this as soon as practicable to the Local Authority’s Money Laundering Reporting 

Page 7

mailto:completing the online form
mailto:audit@salford.gov.uk
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/media/3023/scc-anti-money-laundering-procedures-2016-2018.pdf
https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/media/3023/scc-anti-money-laundering-procedures-2016-2018.pdf


Whistleblowing Policy
September 2019

 Page 4

Officer (Head of Internal Audit or Internal Audit Manager). The disclosure should be made 
within 'hours' of the information coming to your attention. Should you not do so, then you may 
be liable for prosecution.

At no time and under no circumstances should you voice any suspicions to the person(s) 
whom you suspect of money laundering, otherwise you may commit a criminal offence.

HOW WE WILL HANDLE THE MATTER 

We will acknowledge receipt of your concern within 10 days. We will assess it and consider 
what action may be appropriate. This may involve an informal review, an internal inquiry or a 
more formal investigation. 

Concerns or allegations that legally fall within the scope of other organisations (for example, 
the police, Ofsted, and the Care Quality Commission) it will be referred onward. 

We will tell you who will be handling the matter, how you can contact them, and what further 
assistance we may need from you. If you ask, we will write to you summarising your concern 
and setting out how we propose to handle it and provide a timetable for feedback. If we have 
misunderstood the concern or there is any information missing please let us know.

When you raise the concern it will be helpful to know how you think the matter might best be 
resolved. If you have any personal interest in the matter, we do ask that you tell us at the 
outset. If we think your concern falls more properly within our grievance or other relevant 
procedure, we will let you know.

Whenever possible, we will give you feedback on the outcome of any investigation. Please 
note, however, that we may not be able to tell you about the precise actions we take where this 
would infringe a duty of confidence we owe to another person.

While we cannot guarantee that we will respond to all matters in the way that you might wish, 
we will strive to handle the matter fairly and properly. By using this policy you will help us to 
achieve this.

If an employee is required to give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the council 
will advise them about the procedure and offer the appropriate level of support.

If at any stage you experience reprisal, harassment or victimisation for raising a genuine 
concern please contact Internal Audit or the council’s Monitoring Officer.

INDEPENDENT ADVICE 

If you are unsure whether to use this policy or you want confidential advice at any stage, you 
may contact the independent charity Protect (formerly known as Public Concern at Work) on 
020 3117 2520 (* option 1) or by email at whistle@protect-advice.org.uk. They can talk you 
through your options and help you raise a concern about malpractice at work. You can also 
contact your union for advice.

Page 8

mailto:whistle@protect-advice.org.uk


Whistleblowing Policy
September 2019

 Page 5

EXTERNAL CONTACTS 

While we hope this policy gives you the reassurance you need to raise your concern internally 
with us, we recognise that there may be circumstances where you can properly report a 
concern to an outside body. If so, we would rather you raised a matter with the appropriate 
prescribed people and bodies than not at all.

The Government have provided a list of prescribed people and bodies that can be contacted. 
These are mainly regulatory bodies, for example the Ofsted, Care Quality Commission, Health 
and Safety Executive, but also include the council’s external auditors (currently Mazars).

If you do take the matter outside the council you need to ensure that you do not disclose 
confidential information except to those included in the list of prescribed people and bodies.

If you report a concern to the media or otherwise fail to go through appropriate channels, in 
most cases you will lose your right to protection under the Public Interest Disclosure Act and 
could potentially face disciplinary action.

The law is complex in this area. If there is any doubt about which route to take, it is 
recommended that the prescribed person, Protect, or your union be contacted first for initial 
advice (only disclosing such details as are required to enable them to provide that advice, and 
on the basis that such disclosures are treated as confidential).

MONITORING / OVERSIGHT

The council’s Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of 
this policy, maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes, and will report as 
necessary to the council.

The Internal Audit Team will monitor the daily operation of the policy and if you have any 
comments or questions, please do not hesitate to let one of the team know.

The Policy was last updated and approved in January 2017, and will next be reviewed in 2021.

Approval Log Date

Monitoring Officer July 2019

Unions / Joint Secretaries August 2019

Lead Member For Finance & Support Services; and    
Lead Member For Workforce & Industrial Relations September 2019

Workforce Panel

Audit & Account Committee

Page 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/blowing-the-whistle-list-of-prescribed-people-and-bodies--2


This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF SERVICE REFORM

TO WORKFORCE PANEL

ON 24th SEPTEMBER 2019

TITLE: [My]Work – enabling our people to be smarter in how they work, whilst 

maintaining a healthy work-life balance. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Workforce Panel note the contents of the report and agree to: 

 Support [My]Work as Salford’s approach to smart working;

 Support the implementation and roll out of [My]Work across the council.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Salford City Council is people centred and values based with all of our people striving 

to deliver the best quality services for the residents of the city.  The way we work is 

changing as we reform public services at a local level based on the principles of 

place-based working and integrated delivery with partners.  The ability to adapt to 

these changes can be constrained by poorly designed workplaces and spaces, 

inflexible working practices and outdated IT.

To ensure that people can work more efficiently and effectively and are able to 

respond to the needs of our citizens we need to empower our people and provide the 

right tools to enable them to utilise the space around them – either in the office, out in 

communities, at home or other locations.  It is no longer viable to just increasingly 

add more desks to an already overcrowded and unproductive environment centred 

on a single location.

Flexible and smart working is increasingly being recognised for providing wider 

organisational benefits beyond those traditionally associated with just meeting the 

needs of parents and carers.  In addition, we want to make sure that Salford is a 

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2

place where people want to work - to motivate and engage people, to attract and 

retain talent, and to support diversity and inclusion.  

This report introduces [My]Work which is a fundamentally different approach to how, 

when and where we work.  It seeks to support employees to balance their 

responsibilities in and out of work and, at the same time, increase performance and 

productivity in delivering excellent services to the residents of Salford.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

DETAILS:

1. Background 

The nature of work is changing - as we reform services to respond to the 

requirements of our citizens putting place-based working and integrated delivery and 

a digital first approach at the core of how we deliver services.  We need to be able to 

provide quicker, easier, better services to our residents, as well as consider the 

wellbeing, productivity and effectiveness of our workforce.

Across all sectors there has been a fundamental shift in traditional ‘office based’ 

working – it is no longer nine to five, and due to digital advances, being cloud based 

means you can work anywhere, anytime. Work is no longer just somewhere we go it 

is much more about what we do, what we achieve and the outputs and outcomes that 

we deliver. To ensure that people can work more efficiently and effectively and are 

able to respond to the needs of our citizens we need to enable our employees to 

utilise the space around them – either in the office, out in communities, at home or 

other locations.  It is no longer viable to just increasingly add more desks to an 

already overcrowded and unproductive environment centred on a single location.

Flexible and smart working is increasingly being recognised for providing wider 

organisational benefits beyond those traditionally associated with just meeting the 

needs of parents and carers.  

Page 12



3

Working smarter means that we need to challenge the assumptions connected with 

new ways of working and bring new approaches to leadership, where and how 

people work and skills development.  Transforming how we work is essential if we 

are to successfully reform services to respond to the requirements of our citizens.  

We want to make sure that Salford is a place where people want to work - to 

motivate and engage people, to attract and retain talent, and to support diversity and 

inclusion.  

2. What is [My]Work?
It is a fundamentally different approach to how, when and where we work. [My]Work 

is the brand for these new ways of working and encompasses being able to work in a 

place based way in the communities that we serve, accessible and responsive to our 

citizens, at the right time and utilising the right technology.   It seeks to support 

employees to balance their responsibilities in and out of work and, at the same time, 

increase performance and productivity in delivering excellent services to the 

residents of Salford. We have described this in an aspirational vision statement;

To empower and enable employees to be productive, efficient 

and effective, to work anywhere, anytime, creating a flexible 

workspace whilst maintaining a healthy work life balance.  

3. Why [My]Work?
As a people centred and values based organisation the drivers for change are broad 

and include:

 Modernising our organisation as an employer to attract and retain a diverse and 
talented workforce;

 Improving services to our residents out in their communities, rather than being 
civic-centre based;

 Supporting our employee wellbeing, diversity and inclusion priorities including 
supporting working carers;

 The rationalisation of our estate;

Page 13



4

 Reducing carbon emissions through less staff travel, in support of the 1Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Proposals

There are many research documents available that show the benefits of flexible 

working to both employees and organisations. The employee of the future expects 

and deserves to be able to work in a more flexible way, harnessing the 

advancements in technology that are available to them.  Failing to challenge 

traditional working practices could mean we are potentially missing talent and 

excluding those who are unable to work in a more traditional way. 

Providing our employees with the right tools enables them to work from the most 

appropriate place, whilst being able to access the right information and systems, 

avoiding unnecessary travel and freeing up more time to respond to the needs of our 

citizens.

It should be noted that many good employers have been moving to this way of 

working for some time, and whilst we have a broad range of modern working 

practices in place which benefit our employees, we are in danger of falling behind 

other public and private sector partners, including a number of North West local 

authorities if we do not move to embrace smarter working practices.

There is a growing expectation that this is how people expect to work, and in order 

for us to both retain existing talent and attract new talent in order to be able to 

provide the best services to our residents we have to be able to compete in this area.

Our organisation only exists because of its people, and we need to be able to 

consider the employee of the future. The infographic below describes the seven 

principles of the future employee2, which is a useful visual image of the changes in 

how people work now. It demonstrates that collaboration and sharing knowledge is 

key, that learning takes place in many informal ways and that the days of sitting 

behind a desk in an office from 9-5 are behind us. 

1 https://cleanairgm.com/clean-air-plan?cookies=true
2 https://www.forbes.com/sites/jacobmorgan/2014/11/11/the-7-principles-of-the-future-employee/#4353f4f24cac

Page 14



5

The 7 Principles of the Future Employee

The Flexible Working Task Force3, a partnership across government departments, 

business groups, trade unions and charities was established in March 2018 to widen 

the availability and uptake of flexible working across the workforce by bringing 

together organisations with relevant expertise. These include the Chartered Institute 

of Personnel and Development (CIPD), Confederation of British Industry (CBI), 

Chartered Management Institute (CMI), Federation of Small Businesses (FSB), 

Trades Union Congress (TUC), Age UK, Carers UK, Timewise Foundation, Working 

Families, ACAS, the Department for Work and Pensions and HM Treasury. 

As part of its efforts to increase uptake, the task force has been highlighting the 

business benefits of flexible working which include:

3 https://www.cipd.co.uk/news-views/policy-engagement/flexible-working

Page 15

https://www.cipd.co.uk/news-views/policy-engagement/flexible-working


6

● Addressing skill and labour shortages by making work more accessible to older 

people and those with caring responsibilities;

● Improving productivity by increasing employee motivation;

● Boosting job satisfaction, engagement and well-being, whilst also helping to reduce 

sickness absence by allowing employees to manage disability and long-term health 

conditions, and caring responsibilities, as well as supporting their mental health;

● Helping organisations to retain people, particularly those with caring 

responsibilities;

● Creating more diverse workforces which reduces the gender pay gap by giving 

more opportunities for women to progress into senior roles.

4. Developing [My]Work? 
We have undertaken a detailed piece of research and development work that has 

included field investigations with other organisations, both public and private to 

understand the business case, identify the issues and write the vision, develop our 

approach and develop the tools to enable us to move from our current ways of 

working to smarter, more agile and flexible ways – from current state to [My]Work in 

action. 

We have followed our principles of co-design to ensure that employees have had and 

continue to have chances to influence and shape their way of working, to ensure that 

communication is clear and consistent, and to test and iterate [My]Work as we 

continue to develop the approach.

We have also engaged with employees, shared updates and used input from the 

Salford 100 to inform our approach.

The [My]Work approach covers five main areas; the key principles, the vision, the 

benefits, the personas and the themes as outlined in Appendix 1.

4.1 Key principles

Page 16



7

These key principles have been developed to describe what we mean by [My]Work 

and to set the scene for the overall vision.

4.2 The vision
To empower and enable employees to be productive, efficient and effective, to work 

anywhere, anytime, creating flexible workspaces whilst maintaining a healthy work 

life balance.  

4.3The benefits

[My]Work is a clear enabler to support new ways of working and the delivery of our 

Workforce, Digital and Estates Strategies.  Through our approach to workforce 

development and the Digital Skills Academy we will ensure that we are upskilling 

employees, especially in emerging digital technologies, and developing new 

leadership skills, as well as reducing turnover and associated costs. We will be able 

to support people with disabilities or long-term health conditions and our working 

carers to work in places or at times more suitable to them.

[My]Work will enable us to deliver services in communities, with improved service 

continuity, and improved employee satisfaction.  In line with the principles of place-

based working we need to ensure that integrated public services are delivered in 

community settings with locations across the city where employees who need to work 

Page 17



8

closer to their customers/clients can do so, whilst accessing all the systems and 

information they need to do their job.

[My]Work will enhance our reputation and support our aspirations as an employer of 

choice; offering greater flexibility and better work life integration, extending work 

opportunities to those excluded or disadvantaged by traditional ways of working and 

providing the ability to retain people when circumstances change combined with the 

ability to recruit from a wider talent pool.

Through our co-design approach to change, our people have been telling us about 

the benefits of flexible working, and what it means to them:

 “Being able to work flexibly means I have the freedom to plan my day to get 

the most out of it.”

 “Working smarter allows me to get my work completed as well as manage 

home and family commitments.”

 “I’d never want to go back to the 9-5 way of working, people’s lives don’t work 

that way.”

 “Avoiding busy travel times means I waste far less time sitting in traffic.”

 “Being flexible means I can work late if I need to get something urgent 

finished, or can finish early if I have a personal appointment.”

 “The flexibility I am given in how and when I do my work means I return that 

flexibility back – it’s a two way street!”

4.4The themes

[My]Work rollout across services is intended to be truly flexible as it is acknowledged 

that there cannot be a fixed approach given the diversity of our services and the way 

in which those services are delivered.  Excellent service delivery must always come 

first but, beyond this, there are significant opportunities to support each service to 

utilise [My]Work as an enabler to more efficient and effective working. 

The four core elements to successfully transition to new working practices are 

Leadership, People, Workspace and Equipment - each theme is critical to the success 

of the programme.

Page 18



9

The four core elements

[My]Leadership

We manage through trust and measure 

performance outcomes, not presence. Our 

leaders collectively own smart working, 

embed it in their teams, and model the right 

behaviours

 [My]People

Flexible working is our default; we balance 

the freedom to choose how we work with 

our responsibility to meet business need. 

We are a great place to work; we trust each 

other to deliver and we are inclusive in 

everything that we do

[My]Workspace
We optimise our space and create efficient, 

task-focused environments that empower 

our people and encourage collaboration. 

We choose the right workspace for each 

task, and we use technology to improve 

meetings and include all participants

[My]Equipment
Our technology enables flexibility and we 

exploit new collaboration, document 

sharing, and communication tools. We are 

connected; we share information regularly 

and responsibly, and make the most of 

digital tools to work together regardless of 

location

The shift in mind-set and culture that is required across the organisation should not 

be underestimated, and is the foundation to the success of the rollout of [My]Work.  A 

key element of the organisational development plan to underpin the programme is 

the support offered to managers to enable them to shift from a traditional 

management approach based on time and presenteeism to being comfortable in 

leading and managing based on the outcomes delivered.   

Page 19



10

There is strong leadership support for the [My]Work approach. However, there are a 

range of practical challenges to enabling both a shift to a culture of management by 

outcomes and in enabling leaders to embrace this way of working themselves.  As 

part of the #LeadingSalford development programme a range of masterclasses have 

been developed and commissioned to provide leaders with the skills and confidence 

to lead teams to work smarter. 

4.5The personas
Three [My]Work personas have been developed to help identify and determine 

typical requirements for both technology and the workspace environment these are - 

anchor, agile and field.  More information about the typical behaviours, workspace, 

skills and technology requirements for each can be found in Appendix 1.

These three high level personas are used to categorise the wide variety of roles 

across the organisation and describe the typical requirements for behaviours, 

workspace and equipment. The best equipment for each type of worker has been 

identified ensuring that we utilise the latest technology, to ensure maximum security 

with regards to data protection. The flexibility offered by this equipment also means 

that our employees have the right kit to enable them to perform as efficiently and 

effectively as possible, giving them access to the information they need, when they 

need it. It also means that employees can benefit from the powerful collaborative 

software tools that are available, meaning conversations, files, video and phone calls 

can take place seamlessly regardless of location.

5. [My]Work in action
A number of early adopter teams and services have been identified where [My]Work 

can support and enable changes within those services including relocation and/or 

just a general improvement to working practices to achieve better outcomes.  

As part of the organisational development plan for bringing together the single 

commissioning arrangements across some of the services in the People Directorate 

and the CCG [My]Work will be an enabler to new ways of working and the co-location 

of teams.   

Page 20



11

In addition to the early adopters, there are a number of organisational development 

programmes already underway which will benefit from integrating [My]Work as an 

enabler to new ways of working as they are developed and include:

 Development and implementation of the ‘No Wrong Door’ model

 Digitisation programme for social workers

 Further development of the early help model

 Further development of our integrated neighbourhood model

The approach to implementation forms part of a wider strategic plan aligned with 

other programmes as part of the delivery of the estates and digital strategies, 

including relocation of services and the rollout of Windows 10. The planned update is 

essential to ensure that we are secure and protected from any new viruses or 

security problems once our existing Windows 7 software enters ‘end of life.’ Failure to 

upgrade to Windows 10 leaves us extremely vulnerable to any emerging cyber 

security threats, and means we would no longer be compliant with ISO 27001.

5.1 [My]Work in neighbourhoods using our existing spaces
There are a multitude of great spaces across the city, and work is already underway 

to develop and design concepts of how our spaces might look and function – building 

on the use of zones. Once these concepts are agreed, we would be looking to use 

these new spaces as user testing spaces – in effect, these will be user labs for 

people to visit, test, start to initiate behaviour change, and begin to see the art of the 

possible in terms of a different approach to workspace as activity space rather than 

‘my space’ and also in terms of the technology from which they can benefit.

The first community based [My]Work space to go live is located within Pendleton 

Gateway and provides a clean, bright and welcoming dedicated [My]Work area for 

employees to use. Initial feedback shows a small but steady flow of employees keen 

to try the space out, and plans are being completed for the next three spaces to 

become available at The Landing, Walkden Gateway and Broughton Hub providing 

work spaces at geographical locations across the city. The latter two spaces require 

some remodelling before they are ready to be used.

Page 21



12

We are also working with some of our partner organisations including the University 

and SCL to identify further work spaces in different locations to ensure accessible 

workspaces are available for employees to use across the city.

5.2 Align [My]Work with existing plans 
There are a number of other existing strategies and plans in place, including the roll 

out of Windows10 and digital kit, property moves and service redesigns. [My]Work 

will be aligned with all of these other plans to ensure that we can maximise the 

impact of any changes and capitalise on the significant benefits that [My]Work offers 

as a real enabler for change and establishing and embedding new ways of working. 

5.3 Engagement with services
Engagement with individual services forms a critical part of the implementation, and 

meaningful and timely workforce involvement, engagement and communication will 

be essential to the success of the roll out.  In addition to the planned rollout it is 

anticipated that through general communication and engagement with services many 

will start to adopt the [My]Work principles and ways of working as an enabler to 

improving service delivery.

5.4 [My]Work as ‘business as usual’
[My]Work is an enabler to support service improvement and more efficient and 

effective working practices.  To ensure that we embed the [My]Work principles and 

approach into our business as usual arrangements the personas will be considered 

as we develop role profiles, the ‘happy to talk flexible working’ tagline and campaign 

will appear in all of our adverts, [My]Work and the typical requirements for each 

persona will be embedded in to our ‘welcome to Salford’ on-boarding arrangements 

to ensure the provision of appropriate technology and kit before a new employee 

joins, and we will model the right behaviours from the top down.  

6. A digitally skilled workforce 
To be able to achieve our vision for a flexible and effective workplace strategy, 

supporting our people to develop the right digital skills is essential. 

Page 22



13

Our Digital Skills Academy has been developed to support and develop digital 

capabilities across the organisation. In response to the introduction of new 

technology through the transformation of services, the requirement to upgrade 

operating systems and the introduction of new ways of working such as virtual 

meetings, the Digital Skills Academy offers four digital pathways, supporting all of our 

workforce to develop and improve their digital skills, so that they can operate safely 

and confidently online and most importantly make the most of new technology in their 

work and personal life.  

Digital Skills Academy

CONTACT OFFICER: Kathryn Kennedy TEL NO: 686 6220

Page 23



14

APPENDIX 1

Anchor Agile Field [My]Work spaces

Behaviours 

Attends a single work location, 
on average more than three to 
four days per week, with the 
ability to work from various 
locations due to business need.                                                                                
Roles will include 80% of their 
time processing information or 
delivering voice services, from a 
single location where they enjoy 
a static environment and feel 
comfortable to perform best.                                                                                      
Duties may occasionally require 
traveling to another location or 
to attend meetings.

Attends a single work location, on 
average, less than three days per 
week and frequently travels in their 
role.                                                                                        
Roles spend a lot of time away 
from a desk, sitting in meetings 
and working on site and around the 
city. They mainly process 
information when in the office and 
need a place to concentrate, as 
well as areas for communication 
and interaction. They occupy some 
meeting space either formal or 
informal.

Attends a single work location on 
average, less than one day per week, 
predominantly working in a place 
based way.                                                                                                      
Roles will include processing 
information and completing work whilst 
on the job. Spending most of their time 
out of the office or away from their 
team. They will require an office base 
where they are able to check in with 
their team and feel welcome. 

[My]Work space is accessible to all 
employees to use across the city.                                                                              
All users can use the space either for short 
term touch down space, in-between 
appointments or meetings or utilise the space 
for a full day to deliver services in a place 
based way. User should considered the 
space to reduce travel and drive efficiencies.                                                                      
Users must ensure all [My]Work space across 
the city respected in line with the Councils 
values

Workspace

Typically requires a dedicated 
desk or touch down space areas 
for processing information, 
conversation and the occasional 
meeting space.

Typically requires shared ‘touch 
down’ space across various 
locations, meeting rooms and 
breakout space for collaboration.

Typically does not require a dedicated 
office space, but considers flexible 
space utilisation and the open choice 
of work environments, both important 
and inspiring. 

Typically [My]Work spaces are available in 
secured areas or office type environments 
across the city.                                                                                         
All spaces provide toilet and kitchen facilities 
for users. Meeting room space can be 
available through request.

P
age 24



15

Digital Skills

All users should be proficient in 
business systems and 
applications.                                 
Users should hold essential 
digital workplace skills which 
include communicating, 
managing information, 
transacting, creating and 
problem solving online. Users 
should be able to communicate 
with their teams through digital 
platforms either through written 
or video calling applications and 
be able to save and share 
documents online.

All users should be proficient in 
business systems and 
applications.                               
Users should be able to connect 
devices to Wi-Fi to work in various 
locations and typically use a 
variety of platforms to 
communicate either written or 
through video calling with their 
team or customers both internally 
or externally. Users would arrange 
online meetings or video 
conferencing as part of their role. 
They should be confident using 
collaboration tools to share and 
edit documents online. 

All users should be proficient in 
business systems and applications.                                       
Users need to be connected to Wi=Fi 
or be 4G enable to work in a place 
based way. Typically they would use a 
mobile device to process information 
or communicate with their team or 
customers both internally or externally. 
Their role will require them to process, 
share and manage information in a 
secure and confidential manner whilst 
in the field.

All users should be proficient in business 
systems and applications.                                                            
Users should hold essential digital workplace 
skills which include communicating, 
managing information, transacting, creating 
and problem solving online. Users should be 
able to communicate with their teams through 
digital platforms either through written or 
video calling applications and be able to save 
and share documents online.

Equipment

Typical equipment will include 
either a desk top computer for 
front facing services accessed 
by multiple users or be provided 
with a laptop. Users will log in to 
office phones or use headsets.

Typical equipment will include an 
X390 laptop or X390 yoga laptop 
to provide users with the option to 
use either as a laptop or touch 
screen whilst out of an office 
environment.                                             
Users may require laptops to be 
4G enabled if Wi-Fi connectivity 
isn't available where their role is 
required to perform.

Typical equipment will include a yoga 
laptop, phone or specialist equipment 
depending on their role.                                                                           
Users will require 4G connectivity to 
ensure communication and work 
processes are logged with their teams.

All [My]Work spaces provide users with 
secured Wi-Fi connection, desks with 
monitors and power points to charge phones, 
laptops and other mobile devices.

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 27



Work is no longer just somewhere we go.

Work is much more about what we do, what we 

achieve and the outcomes we deliver.

P
age 28



The vision
There has been a fundamental shift in traditional office based working – it is no longer 

nine to five, and due to digital advances, being cloud based means you can work 

anywhere, anytime. Work is no longer just somewhere we go. Work is much more 

about what we do, what we achieve and the outputs and outcomes that we deliver. 

We need to be able to provide a quicker, easier, better service to our residents, as 

well as consider the wellbeing, productivity and effectiveness of our workforce. 

We want to make sure that Salford is a place where people want to work  - to motivate 

and engage staff, to attract and retain talent, and to support diversity and inclusion. 

This approach considers how employees utilise the space around them – either in the 

office, outside, at home or other location. We no longer want to increasingly add more 

desks to an overcrowded and unproductive environment, and we need to understand 

the impact of the workplace environment on outputs and outcomes. 

To empower and enable employees to be productive, efficient 
and effective, to work anywhere, anytime, creating a flexible 
workspace and maintaining a healthy work life balance.

P
age 29



Key principles

Work is no longer just somewhere we go

Work is much more about what we do, what we 
achieve and the outputs & outcomes we deliver

To be inclusive and 
listen to our employees

Not a one size 
fits all 

approach

Develop our 
workspaces to 

spark creativity 
and collaboration

To have activity based 
space, not ‘my space’

To create a 
modern, 

comfortable 
working 

environment

To work 
anywhere 
across the 
city, and 
beyond

P
age 30



If 40% of the UK’s workforce       

worked from home for two days 
per week it could:

• Reduce road travel by 6.3 billion 
miles/year.

• Reduce greenhouse gases by 6.2 
million tonnes/year 

• Save the average commuter 11 

working days of travel per year.
• Save employees between £220 

and £2,900 per year—the result 

of reduced driving and fewer 
work-related expenses. 

The business 
case
The benefits work on  the ‘Triple Bottom 

– benefits for public service, for 
people, and for the environment.

Transforming the way we work is not a 
to have’. It is the only way to make 

sure we provide the workplace our 
employees deserve and the services our 
residents expect and demand  for now 
and in the future. 

Use of conferencing 

technologies at

Vodafone has led to 

a reduction of 

12,000

tons of CO2 from 

business mileage.

Average 

occupancy in a 

traditional office 

over the 

working day is 

around 45%. 

The typical 

carbon footprint 

of a worker in 

an office is 

around 1.5 

tonnes of CO2 

per year.

Some public and 

private sectors are 

able, because of 

smart working, to 

work comfortably 

providing 5 or 6 

desks per 10 FTEs

The average UK 

worker commutes 

for just under an 

hour per day 

equivalent to 4 

years over a 

working life. 

At BT, teleconferencing 

replaced 340,000 road 

trips and 54,000 tonnes 

of CO2 per year.

Their  ‘Anytime 

Anywhere’ workers are 

absent 20 per cent 

less than the average UK 

employee.

A significant 

proportion of the 

UK’s absence from 

work is due to minor 

ailments that make 

the thought of 

commuting and 

sitting in an office 

unbearable. 

According to a 2016 

survey of remote 

workers, 91% of 

people who work 

from home feel that 

they’re more 

productive than when 

they’re in an office.

P
age 31



The 4 elements

[My] 
People

[My] 
Equipment

[My] 
Workspace

[My] 
Leadership

We manage through trust and 

measure performance outcomes, 

not presence. Our leaders 

collectively own smart working, 

embed it in their teams, and 

model the right behaviours

We optimise our space and create 

efficient, task-focused

environments that empower our 

people and encourage

collaboration. We choose the right 

workspace for each task, and we 

use technology to improve 

meetings and include all 

participants

Flexible working is our default; we 

balance the freedom to choose how 

we work with our responsibility to 

meet business need. We are a great 

place to work; we trust each other 

to deliver and we are inclusive in 

everything that we do

Our technology enables flexibility 

and we exploit new collaboration, 

document sharing, and 

communication tools. We are 

connected; we share information 

regularly and responsibly, and make 

the most of digital tools to work 

together regardless of location

P
age 32



Strategy for 
delivery 

At all times; working to bring together the Leadership, People 
Workspace and Equipment strands in order to develop holistic 
behaviour change strategies

Understanding

• Carry out a cultural 
assessment of SCC 
using the Smart 
Working Maturity 
Assessment Tool

• Develop principles 
for MyWork

• Identify behaviour 
change required

• Develop 
relationships with 
key stakeholders

Mobilisation 

• Create a priority list of 
key behaviours to 
change

• Develop behaviour 
change strategies for 
each

• Design and test 
behaviour change 
strategies and 
measures

• Excite, equip and 
embed principles for 
employees

• Gain commitment and 
buy in from leadership

Transition 

• Launch changes to 
process

• Use early adopters to 
demonstrate proof of 
concept

• Monitor adoption, 
attitudes, resistance 
and feedback

• Changing and 
improving

Transformation

• Monitoring and 
improving

• Support

• Celebrate

P
age 33



Anchor Agile Field [My]Work spaces

Behaviours 

Attends a single work location, on average 

more than three to four days per week, with 

the ability to work from various locations due 

to business need.                                                                                

Roles will include 80% of their time 

processing information or delivering voice 

services, from a single location where they 

enjoy a static environment and feel 

comfortable to perform best.                                                                                      

Duties may occasionally require traveling to 

another location or to attend meetings.

Attends a single work location, on average, 

less than three days per week and frequently 

travels in their role.                                                                                        

Roles spend a lot of time away from a desk, 

sitting in meetings and working on site and 

around the city. They mainly process 

information when in the office and need a 

place to concentrate, as well as areas for 

communication and interaction. They occupy 

some meeting space either formal of 

informal.

Attends a single work location on average, less 

than one day per week, predominantly working 

in a place based way.                                                                                                      

Roles will include processing information and 

completing work whilst on the job. Spending 

most of their time out of the office or away 

from their team. They will require an office 

base where they are able to check in with their 

team and feel welcome. 

[My]Work space is accessible to all employees to 

use across the city.                                                                              

All users can use the space either for short term 

touch down space, in-between appointments or 

meetings or utilise the space for a full day to 

deliver services in a place based way. User should 

considered the space to reduce travel and drive 

efficiencies.                                                                      

Users must ensure all [My]Work space across the 

city respected in line with the Councils values

Workspace

Typically requires a dedicated desk or touch 

down space areas for processing information,  

conversation and the occasional meeting 

space.

Typically requires shared ‘touch down’ space 

across various locations, meeting rooms and 

breakout space for collaboration.

Typically does not require a dedicated office 

space, but considers flexible space utilisation 

and the open choice of work environments, 

both important and inspiring. 

Typically [My]Work spaces are available in secured 

areas or office type environments across the city.                                                                           

All spaces provide toilet and kitchen facilities for 

users. Meeting room space can be available 

through request.

Digital Skills

All users should be proficient in business 

systems and applications.                                 

Users should hold essential digital workplace 

skills which include communicating, 

managing information, transacting, creating 

and problem solving online. Users should be 

able to communicate with their teams 

through digital platforms either through 

written or video calling applications and be 

able to save and share documents online.

All users should be proficient in business 

systems and applications.                               

Users should be able to connect devices to 

Wi-Fi to work in various locations and 

typically use a variety or platforms to 

communicate either written or through video 

calling with their team or customers both 

internally or externally. Users would arrange 

online meetings or video conferencing as part 

of their role. They should be confident using  

collaboration tools to share and edit 

documents online. 

All users should be proficient in business 

systems and applications.                                       

Users need to be connected to Wi=Fi or be 4G 

enable to work in a place based way. Typically 

they would use a  mobile device to process 

information or communicate with their team or 

customers both internally or externally. Their 

role will require them  to process, share and 

manage information in a secure and 

confidential manner whilst in the field.

All users should be proficient in business systems 

and applications.                                                            

Users should hold essential digital workplace skills 

which include communicating, managing 

information, transacting, creating and problem 

solving online. Users should be able to 

communicate with their teams through digital 

platforms either through written or video calling 

applications and be able to save and share 

documents online.

Equipment

Typical equipment will include either a desk 

top computer for front facing services 

accessed by multiple users or be provided 

with a laptop. Users will log in to office 

phones or use head sets.

Typical equipment will include a X390 laptop 

or X390 yoga laptop to provide users with the 

option to use either as a laptop or touch 

screen whilst out of an office environment.                                             

Users may require laptops to be 4G enabled if 

if Wi-Fi connectivity isn't available where 

their role is required to perform.

Typical equipment will include a yoga laptop, 

phone or specialist equipment depending on 

their role.                                                                           

Users will require  4G connectivity to ensure 

communication and work processes are logged 

with their teams.

All [My]Work spaces provide users with secured 

Wi-Fi connection, desks with monitors and power 

points to charge phones, laptops and other mobile 

devices.

P
age 34



[My]
Leadership 

im

Commitment of leadership
� Smart working has a number of senior champions who endorse and encourage it 

� Senior leaders seek to use smart working as a supporting tool in achieving organisational change

� Senior leadership are visible in their commitment to smart working principles 

� CMT leads by example, and demonstrates the same smart working practices which they ask of their 

employees (e.g. actively seek opportunities to work from different settings based on the needs of 

allocated tasks, encourage their managers to adopt agile practices etc.) 

Commitment of managers

� Managers adapt the smart working vision for implementation within their teams, seeking out ways in 

which practices can work best for them 

� Managers manage their people and team performance by strong objective setting and resulting 

outcomes, not presenteeism

� Managers have the skills to manage by outcomes 

� Managers and leaders look to smart working as a way to improve the employment offer (e.g. enhanced 

health and wellbeing, better work life balance) 

Contribution to leadership framework

� Smart working plays a part in the personal development objectives of senior leaders, line managers and 

employees

Communications

� Communication channels are used to encourage and promote wider engagement on what smart working 

is, what it seeks to achieve, and why it is important across the organisation

We manage through trust and 
measure performance outcomes, 

not presence 

Our leaders collectively own smart 
working, embed it in their teams, 

and model the right behaviours

P
age 35



My]
People
Aim

Awareness
� Managers and leaders understand the evidence which shows how smart working practices benefit 

the council and itsemployees
� Smart working is recognised by all employees as a core part of the Council’s strategy
� Individuals are encouraged to consider how smart working can apply to their role, and are confident in

taking the discussion to their line manager
� Smart working has achieved sufficient penetration at all levels, and within all areas, and is recognised

as an integral part of culture
� All employees are aware of the need to maintain a healthy work life balance, with leaders advocating 

and supporting this

HR & OD support
� Benefits realised as a result of smart working are monitored and assessed on an ongoing basis, to 

inform how and where the greatest success is being achieved
� HR supports managers in offering informal non-contractual flexibility (subject to service need), such 

as ad hoc working away from the office or from home
� People management policies are flexible and adaptable developed yet ensure that the organisation is 

able to maintain a strong duty of care to employees

Training
� Teams take the opportunity to consider together how smart working is best adapted and implemented 

for them
� New employees are made aware of the Council’s commitment to smart working through recruitment 

tools and inductionprocesses

Recruitment
� Recruitment processes identify and support the Council’s commitment to implementing smart working

practices
� Smart working contributes in a positive way to enhancing inclusion and diversity opportunities within

the Council, for employers and employees alike (e.g. by widening the potential recruitment pool)
� No assumptions are made about certain roles being inappropriate for smart working

Flexible working is our default; we 
balance the freedom to choose how 

we work with our responsibility to 
meet service needs

We are a great place to work; we trust 
each other to deliver and we are inclusive 

in everything that we do

P
age 36



My]
Workspace 
Aim

Range of spaces
� Workspaces offer variety and choice to suit preferences and needs (e.g. meeting rooms, collaborative 

spaces, quiet spaces, touchdown spaces) 
� People make informed choices about the spaces in which they choose to complete different tasks, based on 

the options on offer, and respect the working practices of others (e.g. don't take or make calls in quiet rooms 
/ spaces for concentrated work)

Effective sharing of office space
� The Council has assessed the business need and understands the requirements of individuals and teams to 

determine a set of requirements for the workplace, and are using this to inform future plans
� The Council uses data and knowledge about the effects of smart working on space requirements to make 

informed strategic decisions about future property needs
� Sharing of space has allowed for greater cross-team working
� Space within the office is not allocated on the basis of seniority

Monitoring and Protocols
� Smart working plays a part in the personal development objectives of senior leaders, line managers and 

employees
� Within their buildings, people feel adequate protocols are in place to make them comfortable and confident 

in finding a space to work in an area which is not part of their team's home zone
� Space usage is monitored formally or informally, and the results assessed to identify any required changes to 

space provision or allocation of use
� Protocols or a strategic understanding are in place to set out expectations for agreed use of space, including 

general etiquette, meeting room bookings etc
� Visitors have easy access to guidance on working practices and protocols for the Council’s buildings
� Storage and filing is GDPR compliant and personal belongings are managed appropriately

Mobility
� Sharing of space has encouraged collaboration with new groups and colleagues
� There are no infrastructure issues, for examples with IT or telephony, to prevent others from working in a 

team space
� People are actively encouraged to consider opportunities for working outside of the office, in line with 

service need

We optimise our space and create 
efficient, task-focusedenvironments 

that empower our people and 
encourage collaboration

We choose the right workspace for each 
task, and we use technology to improve 

meetings and include all participants

P
age 37



My]
Equipment 
Aim

Mobile devices
� Each individual is allocated their own mobile technology, as assessed appropriate (e.g. laptop, tablet,

smartphone, or combination of the above), or have access to this equipment when working away from 
the office

� Provision of mobile technology within the Council is not limited to those in senior positions

Access to data
� Information is easily available regardless of location, in line with the security requirements of the

Council
� The cloud, or another accessible information storage solution (as appropriate), is the Council’s default

option for information management

Collaboration
� Collaboration tools e.g. MS Teams, Skype for Business, Trello etc are part of the standard offer to

employees, allowing another route for communication with colleagues when working remotely

Mobility
� Good quality Wi-Fi is available across the Council’s offices, including for visitors to the building
� There is secure access (general and remote) that enables flexibility and smart working opportunities

in line with the service needs

Consultation and training
� People receive appropriate training on devices and tools (including collaboration tools), to ensure they

have the knowledge and skills to make full use of functionality on offer
� Effectiveness of existing tools is continually assessed, including through employee feedback
� There is direct engagement with all employees on their technology needs (hardware and software), so

that technology is provided to enable mobility for different roles
� Pilot or test groups are engaged to trial new products, such as collaboration tools, and feedback is

utilised to ascertain usability

Our technology enables flexibility 
and we exploit new collaboration, 

document sharing, and 
communication tools

We are connected; we share 
information regularly and responsibly, 
and make the most of digital tools to 
work together regardless of location

P
age 38



Planned Present Productive

Working away from core office 
should be planned in advance and 

communicated. 

Employees need to be flexible about 
when they work away and avoid 

following a specific pattern – when 
and where you would should be 

driven by work activities to be 
undertaken and outcomes 

delivered.

Use Skype / MS Teams video 

capability to join meetings.

Be contactable during your working 

day. There should be a clear 

understanding of when the 
employee should work and be 
contactable. 

Expected outcomes for delivery are 
clear, communicated and 
monitored.

Whilst there is no intention to develop a formal ‘policy’ on this area as existing policy 
provision is seen as appropriate, a framework is being developed which aligns with 

our values based on the 3 P’s model outlined below

The 3 P’s
Planned

Present

Productive

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 27 August 2019
	4 Whistleblowing Policy Update
	04 - Draft Whistleblowing Policy

	5 My Work - Enabling our People to be Smarter in How They Work
	05ii Appx A MyWork


